
§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust                     
  A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  
 

AGENDA 
§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 

Tuesday, January 19, 2021 at 1:00 p.m.  
Meeting Via Teleconference Only 

 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ATTEND TELPHONICALLY BY CALLING THE NUMBER LISTED BELOW.  
NO PHYSICAL LOCATION IS BEING PROVIDED FOR THIS MEETING 

(be sure to keep your phones on mute, and do not place the call on hold) 

Phone: (775) 325-5404 
Meeting ID: 544 780 033# 

 
1. Roll call* 

2. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

3. Approval of the agenda (For Possible Action) 

4. Approval of the October 20, 2020 minutes (For Possible Action) 

5. Discussion and request to appoint TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 
Trustee Chairperson and Vice Chairperson for two-year term beginning January 1, 2021 
through December 31, 2022 – Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

6. Discussion and action on signing §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust Board of 
Trustees Annual Pledge of Personal Commitment/Disclosure Form—Rosalinda Rodriguez (For 
Possible Action) 

7. Review and consideration for approval of request(s) for reimbursement of premiums. —
Rosalinda Rodriguez (For Possible Action) 

8. Presentation of the Budget for calendar year 2021 – Sophia Cardinal (For Possible Action) 

9. Review of Retirement Benefits Investment Fund (RBIF) performance review—Michele Sullivan* 

10. Trustee comments and requests for future agenda items* 

11. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

12. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

 

NOTES: 
1. This meeting is being conducted pursuant to the Governor’s Declaration of Emergency Directive 006 (“Directive 006”) 
http://gov.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/govnewnvgov/Content/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/DeclarationofEmergencyDirective00
6reOML.3-21- 20.pdf  
2 The announcement of this meeting has been electronically posted in compliance with NRS 241.020(3) and Directive 006 
at http://www.tmwa.com, and NRS 232.2175 at https://notice.nv.gov/. 
3. Pursuant to Directive 006, the requirement contained in NRS 241.020(3)(c) that physical locations be available for the 
public to receive supporting material for public meetings has been suspended. Staff reports and supporting material for the 
meeting are available on the TMWA website at http://www.tmwa.com/meeting/ or you can contact Rosalinda Rodriguez at 
(775) 834-8294. Supporting material is made available to the general public in accordance with NRS 241.020(6). 
4. The Board may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove agenda items, or delay 
discussion on agenda items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest. 
5. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items. 

http://gov.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/govnewnvgov/Content/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/DeclarationofEmergencyDirective006reOML.3-21-%2020.pdf
http://gov.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/govnewnvgov/Content/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/DeclarationofEmergencyDirective006reOML.3-21-%2020.pdf
http://www.tmwa.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.tmwa.com/meeting/


§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust                     
  A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  
 

6. Pursuant to Directive 006, public comment, whether on action items or general public comment, may be provided 
without being physically present at the meeting by submitting written comments online on TMWA’s  Public Comment Form 
(tmwa.com/PublicComment) or by email sent to boardclerk@tmwa.com prior to the Board opening the public comment 
period during the meeting. In addition, public comments may be provided by leaving a voicemail at (775)834-0255 prior to 
4:00 p.m. on January 15th . Voicemail messages received will either be broadcast on the telephone call during the meeting or 
transcribed for entry into the record. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment 
periods. The Board may elect to receive public comment only during the two public comment periods rather than each action 
item. 

 

https://tmwa.com/comments-to-the-board-for-april-2020-virtual-meeting/
mailto:boardclerk@tmwa.com


 01/19/2021 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 1 of 6 
October 20, 2020  
 

Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
 A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
  

 
DRAFT October 20, 2020 MINUTES 

The meeting of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (Trust) Trustees was held on Tuesday, 
October 20, 2020 via Teleconference. 
 
Michele Sullivan, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 1:02 P.M.  
   
1. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF PRESENCE OF A QUORUM.  

A quorum was present. 

Voting Members Present: Voting Members Absent 
Michele Sullivan  
Juan Esparza    
James Weingart 
Steve Enos 
 
Members Present Members Absent: 
Jessica Atkinson       Mike Venturino 
Rosalinda Rodriguez       
Gus Rossi        

 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the 
Trustees present, the Trustees approved the agenda. 

4. APPROVAL OF THE JULY 21, 2020 MINUTES 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the 
Trustees present, the Trustees approved the July 21, 2020 minutes. 

  



 01/19/2021 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 2 of 6 
October 20, 2020  
 

 

5. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST CALCULATIONS FOR 
TMWA RETIREE MIKE HALLIBURTON 

Ms. Rodriguez presented the benefits calculation for Mike Halliburton.  Mr. Halliburton will 
retire on 11/06/2020 and is requesting trust benefits beginning on 12/01/2020.  Ms. Rodriguez 
met with the retiree and confirmed the information on the benefit calculation form.  He has 
elected to continue on TMWA coverage as Retiree & Spouse for medical, dental, and vision 
coverages. Mr. Halliburton has elected to have any remaining premium balance paid from his 
RHS or PERS check. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the benefits calculation for Mike Halliburton. 

6. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST CALCULATIONS FOR 
TMWA RETIREE CHRIS CONTE 

Ms. Rodriguez presented the benefits calculation for Chris Conte.   Mr. Conte will retire on 
11/13/2020 and is requesting trust benefits beginning on 12/01/2020.  Ms. Rodriguez met with 
the retiree and confirmed the information on the benefit calculation form.  He has elected to 
continue on TMWA coverage as Retiree only for medical, dental, and vision coverage. Mr. Conte 
has elected to have any remaining premium balance paid from his RHS or PERS check. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the benefits calculation for Chris Conte. 

7. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 
PREMIUMS 

 Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for Medicare premiums paid for 
through Social Security. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for Medicare premiums paid 
for through Social Security. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for Medicare Part B and Mutual of 
Omaha premiums paid for through Social Security and directly from the retiree. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for Medicare Part B and 
Mutual of Omaha premiums paid for through Social Security and directly from the retiree. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for United Healthcare 
supplemental coverage and Prescription drug coverage paid for by the retiree. 



 01/19/2021 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 3 of 6 
October 20, 2020  
 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for United Health Care supplemental 
coverage and Prescription drug coverage paid for by the retiree. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for United Healthcare premiums 
paid for by the retiree. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for United Health Care 
premiums paid for by the retiree. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for AARP United Healthcare 
Medicare Supplement plan paid for by retiree through AARP. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for United Healthcare, paid 
for by the retiree through AARP. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for Medicare Part B paid for by the 
retiree through Social Security. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for Medicare Part B paid for 
by the retiree through Social Security. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for Medicare paid for by the retiree 
through Social Security. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for Medicare paid for by the 
retiree through Social Security. 

8. REVIEW OF ACTUARIAL ANALYSIS 

Sophie Cardinal, Principal Accountant, advised that in the July 21st meeting she had reviewed the 
draft of the actuarial analysis, the final version has since been received in July of 2020 and no 
updates were made and as such had nothing new to review.  The actuaries were working on the 
Dec 31st, 2019 valuation and actuarial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.  

 
This is for informational purposes only, no action required. 

  



 01/19/2021 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 4 of 6 
October 20, 2020  
 

9. REVISED 2020 BUDGET 

Sophie Cardinal, Principal Accountant, advised that the TMWA Board had approved a budget 
draft in January of 2020. A revised budget is being brought forth for review and approval. 

The revision is only for the Employer contributions, which is the total paid by TMWA to cover 
Trust obligations.  At the time the budget was prepared there was only an estimate of what 
TMWA would need to contribute which was a total of $138,578.  During the first month of the 
year, half of that total was contributed which was $69,289, this is standard practice. When the 
actuarial report was received in July 2020 it concluded that TMWA did not need to make any 
additional contribution since the PRMT is so adequately funded at the moment.  The only 
revision made is that the original Employer contribution amount of $138,578 has been reduced 
to $69,289.   

Upon motion made, and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent the revised budged for 
2020 was approved as presented. 

10. FINANCIAL AUDIT 

 Ms. Cardinal reviewed the December 2019 audited financial statements. TMWA’s financials 
were audited by an external auditor called Eide Bailly and issued on October 7, 2020.  The Trust 
received a clean or unqualified audit opinion which means the financials are fairly and 
accurately presented and they conform to general accepted accounting principles.  This is the 
best opinion that can be received from an auditor.   

 The basic financials consist of three components: 

1. The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position which is similar to a balance sheet and shows the 
trust’s assets and liabilities. 

2. Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, this is similar to an income statement and 
shows what happened during the year, the increase or decrease in the net position. 

3. Notes to the Financial Statements this is narrative and additional detail to give a better 
understanding of what is reported in the financial statements. 

Ms. Cardinal highlighted that the net income was $2.1 million dollars which was due to net 
investment activity. 

 For informational purposes only, no action required. 

11. REVIEW OF RETIREMENT BENEFITS INVESTMENT FUND (RBIF) PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

Ms. Sullivan reviewed the Retirement Benefits Investment (RBIF) dated June 30, 2020.  The 
Fiscal year to date return is currently 6.7%, and the return since inception is currently 6.5%. 6% 
is the return that the actuaries assume and is in line with the actual returns. 

This is for informational purposes only, no action required. 



 01/19/2021 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 5 of 6 
October 20, 2020  
 

12. DISCUSS TRUSTEE APPOINTMENT FOR TERM JANUARY 1, 2021 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2022. 

Ms. Atkinson advised current trustee appointments expire December 31, 2020.  Currently a 
report is being drafted to present to the TMWA board of Trustees.  The Union has confirmed 
their appointments being James Weingart and Steve Enos.  Ms. Sullivan, as CFO is required to 
continue to serve on the trust due to fiduciary requirements.  Mr. Juan Esparza has agreed to 
serve another Term.   

The confirmed appointments will be presented in the January meeting at which time selection 
of the Chair and Vice Chair appointments will also be confirmed. 

For informational purposes only, no action required. 

13. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE TRUSTEE DIRECTION REGARDING MEETING TIMES AND DATES FOR 
2021 

 Ms. Rodriguez presented meeting times for 2021 to remain on the same schedule that has been 
traditionally used, as being quarterly on the third Tuesday of the month.   

 2021 Trustee Meeting Dates Proposed 
Tuesday, January 19  1:00 p.m. 
Tuesday, April 20  1:00 p.m. 
Tuesday, July 20  1:00 p.m. 
Tuesday, October 19  1:00 p.m. 
 

 Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the recommended meeting times and dates for 2021. 

14. TRUSTEE COMMENTS AND REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS* 

 RBIF review 

 2021 Budget 

 Trustee Appointments 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT  

With no further business to discuss, Chairman Sullivan adjourned the meeting at 1:25 P.M. 

Minutes were approved by the Trustees in session on _____________. 



 01/19/2021 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 6 of 6 
October 20, 2020  
 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 
________________________________________________ 
Rosalinda Rodriguez, Recording Secretary 



01/19/2021 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 06















01/19/2021 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 7_A



01/19/2021 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 7_A



01/19/2021 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 7_A



01/19/2021 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 7_B



01/19/2021 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 7_B



01/19/2021 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 7_B



01/19/2021 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 07_C



01/19/2021 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 07_C



01/19/2021 PRMT § 501-c-9 Agenda 07_C



01/19/2021 PRMT Agenda Item xx     

  Page 1 of 1 

§501-c-9 Post- Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
  a single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  

 
TO: Board of Trustees of the Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
FROM: Michele Sullivan, TMWA CFO and Trust Chairperson 
DATE: January 19, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:     Presentation of the Budget for Calendar Year 2021 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
TMWA staff recommends the Trustees approve the calendar year 2021 budget.  
 
Discussion 
 
The following report is attached:  
 

• Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust (PRMPT) 
Budget for Calendar Year 2021  

 
The budget reflects expected additions to and deductions from PRMPT during the year. The 
following items are noteworthy for 2021: 
 

• The most recent actuarial valuation determined that TMWA does not need to contribute 
anything to the trust, so the budget for Employer Contributions is zero. TMWA conducts 
an actuarial analysis every two years to make sure funding levels are adequate.  

• Net Appreciation (Depreciation) in Fair Value of Investment is not budgeted as 
unrealized gains and losses are difficult to accurately predict.  

• The budget for Benefits Paid is $419,100 and covers health premiums, life insurance 
premiums, and reimbursements to retirees for outside coverage.  

• Trust activity is projected to result in a net decrease of $68,100, primarily due to the 
reduced employer contributions noted above.  

• As of January 2021, PRMPT provides benefits to 48 retirees.  
 
 
 
 
 



Additions

Contributions
Employer -$                    
Plan Members 118,600              

Total Contributions 118,600              

Investment Income
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investment -                           
Investment income 252,600              
Less investment expenses (3,000)                 

Net investment income 249,600              

Total Additions 368,200              

Deductions

Benefits paid 419,100              
Administrative expenses 17,200                

Total Deductions 436,300              

Net Increase (Decrease) (68,100)$            

Truckee Meadows Water Authority
Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust

Budget for Calendar Year 2021

L:\Board & Committees\_Post Retirement Medical Trust\Administration\Trustee Meetings\Agenda 
Items\2021\January 19\Drafts\A. CY 2021 Budget_PRMPT.xlsx



Asset Class Market Value Target 
Allocation

Actual 
Allocation

FYTD 
Return One Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years

Since 
Inception 

(2008)

U.S. Stocks- S&P 500 Index 324,105,474$     50.5% 50.3% 8.9% 15.1% 12.2% 14.1% 13.7% 9.6%
Market Return 8.9% 15.2% 12.3% 14.2% 13.7% 9.6%
Int'l Stocks- MSCI World x US Index 134,819,417$     21.5% 20.9% 5.0% 0.8% 1.0% 5.6% 5.0% 2.3%
Market Return 4.9% 0.2% 0.6% 5.3% 4.6% 2.1%
U.S. Bonds- U.S. Bond Index 184,407,853$     28.0% 28.6% 0.1% 7.8% 5.4% 3.7% 3.4% 3.9%
Market Return 0.1% 7.7% 5.4% 3.7% 3.1% 3.7%

529,411$            0.0% 0.1%

Market Return 5.6% 10.5% 8.1% 9.4% 8.8% 6.8%

9.7% 6.9%

Retirement Benefits Investment Fund
September 30, 2020

Performance

Total RBIF Fund 643,862,155$     100.0% 100.0% 5.9% 11.5% 8.5% 8.9%

01/19/2021 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09


	2021.01.19. OPEB 04 Meeting minutes draft.pdf
	DRAFT October 20, 2020 MINUTES

	2021.01.19. OPEB 05 Meeting minutes draft.pdf
	DRAFT October 27, 2020 MINUTES

	2021.01.19. PRMT 04 Minutes of October 20th meeting_draft.pdf
	DRAFT October 20, 2020 MINUTES

	2021.01.19. PRMT 08 Presentation of Cal Year 2021 Budget_PRMPT.pdf
	Recommendation

	2021.01.19. PRMT 08_A CY 2021 Budget_PRMPT.pdf
	2021

	2021.01.19. PRMT 09 RBIF-Investment-Performance 09302020.pdf
	RBIF




